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254 EAST MAIN STREET, WESTMINSTER 

FISHER-SMITH-FLETCHER HOUSE 

Three-and-a-half stories tall, and five bays wide, this house is 
one of the most powerful forces on the Westminster streetscape. In 1778, 
David Fisher, progenitor of a powerful local family, built a 15' x 25' loq 
cabin where the ground floor northwest room of the present home is today, 
Same of the loq rafters are still in place. Fisher's son, John, became 
cashier of the newly-created Bank of Westminster, located across the street. 
(The Bank was the first bank between Baltimore and Frederick.) Doubtless, 
such a man found a small log house unsuitable, and, when he inherited the 
property, he built a 25' x 60' I-house, incorporating the earlier structure's 
foundations. In 1850, Fisher's heirs sold the place to Judge John Smith, who 
built the present 16 room cube; a six room service wing was added after 1877. 

The house serves as an indication of what a provincial, conservative 
man of wealth would build in the later 19th century. Smith seems to have been 
bound to the traditional central hall, double parlor(s) plan. However, the 
need to express his wealth was (as ever) great and required an architectural 
outlet. He achieved this in the exuberant, almost Baroque, decoration - in 
17 marble fireplaces, and, especially, in what seems today, impossibly carved 
exterior woodwork; swirling brackets, pendants, and cornices appear wherever 
possible. 
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The Fisher-Smith-Fletcher house controlled, at its height, 
two of the original lots in the town of Westminster (lots 35 and 36) , 
on the southwest corner of the intersection of Ralph Street with East 
Main Street (.Maryland Route 32). Three-and-a-half stories tall, and 
five bays wide between the high slate gabled roof and the low brick 
and roughly coursed fieldstone foundations, it is still a powerful 
force on the streetscape. 

One of the many superb decorative features of the house is 
the full-molded cornice which finishes the eaves of the entrance fa-
cade, and is supported by six pairs of rosetted brackets spaced alter­
nately with the 5 bays. Second and third story windows have 6/6 double­
hung sashes with simple enframement and white wooden sills, all windows 
are topped by identical full white wooden modillioned entablatures, 
supported by one small "cabriole" bracket at either end. The five win­
dows on the top floor, and the four on the second and first combine 
with the doors trim to create a very lively facade. There are two cen­
trally placed doors on this front. The second story eiqht-liqht French 
door leads to a 3' x 4' balcony with anthemion-inspired black painted 
balusters. This is supported by a full cornice at the base (if such is 
possible) and by two convolutedly carved scroll giant brackets with de­
corative pendents. The balcony also acts as a hood for the main door, 
a 4 panel double door with a (now blind) transom beneath a dentilled 
cornice and supported by two flanking small rosetted brackets. The door 
is recessed about a foot, and the alcove is richly decorated with six 
recessed panels. Two finely carved soapstone steps lead to the door. 
(The present owner plans on removing them as "someone could fall on them 
and sue me".) The two windows on either side of the entrance door are 
finished in the same manner as the rest of the windows, but are elongated 
and now have immovable single sashes, with eight lights. The Flemish Bond 
brick is painted a pale green which contrasts nicely with the white of 
the wood, and the black of the louvered shutters which flank each window. 

The east and west eaves of the gable ends are finished with nicely 
laid three step brick corbelling. The west facade has one 6/6 window light­
ing the attic, and two regularly placed windows on each floor. The three 
southerly windows all have three course gauged flat arches. But of all 
three windows, only the southerly window on each of the second and third 
stories has not been boarded over. Three simple iron-grated windows light 
the cellar. Two corbelled capped chimneys create the skyline's rhythm. 

Both west and east walls are laid in five course common bond. 
Although the entire qround floor of the east front is now covered with a 
stone-faced and stucco funeral home, some of its former dignity remains. 

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY 
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE 

The significance of 254 East Main Street is architectural, both 
for what it is today, and for the stages the place passed through to get 
to its present grandness. 

William Winchester sold lots 35 and 36 in his newly created town 
to David Fisher on September 1, 1778, for 6 pounds (Frederick County deed 
book RD, number 1, page 486). Six days later, Fisher bought the adjoining 
westerly lot, number 36, RD 1/487. Fisher, the progenitor of a family that 
has been very prominent in Westminster's economic and political history 
(judge, mayors, bank presidents, etc.) probably built a log cabin for him­
self where the ground floor northwest room is now. In the cavernous, multi­
portioned cellar, it is possible to see, in this section, that the floor­
boards and rafters are, in the 15' x 25' section, of log, and the foundations 
are of fieldstone; elsewhere the rafters and boards are planks, and the founda· 
tions are, generally, of brick. 

Fisher's son, John, became cashier of the newly created Bank of 
Westminster (q.v.) located directly across the street. (In fact, we are 
told that in the early 19th century the bank was known as "Fisher's Bank" -
American Sentinel September, 1913.) Doubtless such a man would find a log 
cabin unsuitable; he probably then built a house in the southern - I style, 
a style that was competing with the deeper Pennsylvania farmhouse for dom­
inance in the City. Again, in the basement, we can see the foundations of 
a long, narrow (25' x 60') house that incorporates the log cabin. There is 
a fine large round arched brick chimney in what was the east cellar room 
(kitchen?). The diary of Katharine Jones Shellman calls Fisher a "bank 
cashier and farmer." 

Fishers heirs sold the place on December 29, 1850, to Joshua 
Smith for $2554 (four lots were included, nos. 35-38 (Deed 17/27). "Judge" 
John Smith bought the land in 1875. Many old-time residents refer to the 
present home as having been "built by a judge" (including the present owner). 
This, plus the later-in-the-century style of the exterior brackets and of 
the interior details (such as remain), makes it easy to imagine that it was 
John Smith who built the existing mansion, but adding the service wing later; 
an 1877 plat shows the house as being essentially square, with only modest 
extensions to the rear. Smith probably added the ell as his wealth recovered 
from the eno:rnious expense of building his 12 room mansion. 

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY 
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Beneath the three-step corbelled eaves, and the flat-capped chimney five 
feet south of the gable's peak, two four light windows help light the attic. 
There are three windows on the third (6/6) and second (six light casement) 
stories. These work but, unlike the north and west facades, have no shutters. 

Stretching to the south is a two story four bay shed-roofed addition. 
Only the second story is not hidden by the funeral home. Its windows, on line 
with those of the Main Street sections, are also six light casement. Five 
pairs of scroll brackets support the full cornice at the eaves; an unusual white 
wooden string course connects the bases of the brackets. 

The south front has changed several times, and is fairly confusing. 
Beneath the corbelling are three regularly placed (original) 6/6 windows with 
three course gauged flat arches. Below this floor was, once, a recessed 2-
tiered gallery running between two 10' sections of the main building. Today 
the large shed roofed wing covers much of what is left of the porch; and wood 
infills cover all but the central five feet of the rest. The shed roof sec­
tion (with the roof sloping to the west) has one eight-light casement window 
per floor in the western section of its south 6 course corn1non bond facade 
(which is the bonding pattern for the entire south front). Three course 
gauged flat arches top the windows which are flanked by black louvered shutters. 
The western section of the entire south facade has six 6/6 archless windows 
on the second story. One glass and aluminum storm door is located on each 
floor of what is left of the porch; the doors are centrally placed and the 
spaces are, at least, original. To the west of the porches are the wooden 
infills: clapboard on the second floor (with a 6/6 window in the center), and 
board and pattern below, with a set of three 9/6 windows in its center. 

The funeral wing, built in 1969, is entered from Main Street through 
a swan's neck pedimented plate glass door, (beneath a suitable black awning), 
and from Church Street by a similar but small scale door between two long 
many-lighted windows. The south side has two 6/6 windows. Although the Main 
Street section is faced with stone, the other sides are all covered in pure 
white stucco. 

The Main Street double entrance door has very interesting original 
brass hardware (including a two-key lock and an unusual, later scrolled door 
bell). The door leads to the central hall with a long rounded-staircase which 
has a fine heavy turned newel post and balusters. Risers have simple bracket 
decoration. In plan, the three stories were identical with their central 
stair hall, double parlors to either side, and, on the ground and second story's 
a two room ell to the southeast. Serious recent redecorations have hidden or 
removed almost all of the original interior details - including 16 of the 17 
original fireplaces. (The only one remaining is in the ground floor southwest 
room; it is a typical mid 19th century round-arched affair (made of pink marble) 
with Plain colonettes, simple spandrels, and a carved cartouche in the center.) 
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The house remained in the Smith family until 1913. It changed 
hands thrice until the present owner took partial title in 1968 (Deed 477/ 
508) and then full fee-simple title May 22, 1974 (571/703). 

Besides the archeological interest of the place, the house is 
interesting as an example of what a conservative man of wealth would build 
in the late 19th century. Smith seemed desirous of keeping the traditional 
central hall-double parlor farmhouse plan of his ancestors. However, the 
need to display his wealth was (as ever) great and could only manifest it­
self in exuberant, almost Baroque, decoration - in marble fireplaces and 
in what seems today impossibly carved woodwork. 
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